
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 


Notice is hereby given that the Alcohol Policy Subcommittee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 
 
 
 


Meeting of: Alcohol Policy Committee 
Date/Time: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 @ 1:00 p.m. Central Time (US and Canada) 
Location: The meeting will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual and In Person) 


In-Person: at Stoughton Area EMS, 516 S. 4th Street, Stoughton, WI  53589 
Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84692144333?pwd=OUhNbUtIQ3lMMk95ZzJydjlxcG9LQT09 


 
Meeting ID: 846 9214 4333 
Passcode: 871704 
One tap mobile 
+13052241968,,84692144333#,,,,*871704# US 
+13092053325,,84692144333#,,,,*871704# US 


 
Members:  Joseph Baird (Chair), Teressa Pellett, Jim Baldauf, Todd McVey, Jerry Deschane, DJ Payton, 


Adam Wallace, Chad O’Neil, Cole Sargent 
  


 
1. Call to Order 
2. Communications 
3. Approval of April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes – Quorum Not Met for May – No New Minutes 


 OLD BUSINESS  


 


 NEW BUSINESS  
4. Alcohol Policy Committee Description 
5. Committee Chair and Secretary Notes 
6. Future Meeting Schedule 
7. Municipal Alcohol Policy Inventory Prioritizing 
8. Retailer Informational Meeting 
9. 2023 Liquor License Holders 
10. New Liquor License Application Process 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/Guests: 
 


 ADJOURNMENT  
 


cc. Mayor Swadley, Department Heads, Council, Attorney Matt Dregne, Library Clerical Asst., Receptionists, 
Stoughton Newspapers/Wisc State Journal *Note: An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the 
Council. Meeting may close per Statutes 19.85 (1)(b)to consider the licensing of a person, then reopen for 


Item # AGENDA 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84692144333?pwd=OUhNbUtIQ3lMMk95ZzJydjlxcG9LQT09





regular course of business. 
Dial by your location 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
Meeting ID: 865 3203 7682 
Passcode: 301167 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kc5P0ymI3b 
 


 



https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kc5P0ymI3b



		FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/Guests:






City of Stoughton 


Alcohol Policy Subcommittee 


Meeting notes for April 4, 2023 


 
 


The Alcohol Policy Subcommittee held its monthly meeting on Tuesday, April 4, 2023 at the EMS 
Training Room, 516 S. 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589.  Individuals present included: Teressa Pellett, 
John Basco, Jim Baldauf and Todd McVey. Member Jerry Deschane and Mayor Tim Swadley attended 
virtually. 


 


 
1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm by Jim Baldauf, acting as 


Subcommittee Chair for Joseph Baird. 


OLD BUSINESS : No old business was discussed 


 


NEWBUSINESS  
2. Approval of meeting minutes 3-2-22: Motion to approve made by John Basco and 


seconded by Todd McVey and carried. 
3. Communications. Mayor Swadley and Ms. Pellett reported on discussion at a recent 


Public Safety Committee that was relevant to the work of the subcommittee. There 
was discussion regarding including limits on alcohol, tobacco and vaping within the 
city’s zoning ordinances in addition to within licensing ordinances. Much of this 
discussion was spurred by a recent application to locate a new convenience store/gas 
station, but the Mayor pointed out that changes to ordinances may only be applied 
prospectively to applications not yet received. 


4. Subcommittee description. Pellett reviewed the proposed description of the 
subcommittee and relayed her conversations with the mayor regarding that 
description. Committee members generally agreed that it is important to have the 
Public Safety Committee let us know what they want the subcommittee to do. There 
was additional discussion regarding the role of the subcommittee and the need for 
clarity and direction. Mayor Swadley reviewed the Bartender license renewal process, 
which currently does not involve action by the Subcommittee. There was a consensus 
of agreement that the Subcommittee does not need to be involved in that process. 
The Subcommittee could, based on direction given from the Public Safety Committee, 
review other alcohol-related ordinances and recommend revisions. Depending upon 
its workload, the subcommittee may also decide it does not need to meet monthly. 


5. Retailer information meeting. The Mayor reported that the City Clerk called the 
Village of Waunakee to discuss their informational meeting with licensees, which is a 
part of the village’s renewal process. The Mayor noted that the City’s attorney has 
clarified that such a meeting could only be voluntary. After further discussion, there 
was consensus that a voluntary meeting to stress mutual support and partnership 


Item # AGENDA 







between the city and licensees would be valuable. Potential topics of such a meeting 
could be a check-in about the current business climate, an overview of licensing 
process changes, a presentation by the department of revenue on licensing issues 
and a mutual give-and-take about ways the city and licensees can support the goals 
of one another.  


6. There being no further business, a motion was made by ??, seconded by ?? and 
carried to adjourn at 1:37 p.m. 








Stoughton Alcohol Policy Committee 


 


The purpose of the Alcohol Policy Committee is to ease the burden of establishing and 
maintaining best practices regarding alcohol policy in the City of Stoughton. The Stoughton 
Alcohol Policy Committee will achieve this by reviewing and advising the Public Safety 
Committee on all alcohol and related license applications, renewals, and amendments. 
Additionally, the Committee will research best practices to draft edits or propose new alcohol-
related ordinances, policies, and practices. 
Description of the work: 


1. Coordinate the Municipal Alcohol Policy Inventory biennially to assess existing policies, 
ordinances, and enforcement efforts and to identify opportunities to strengthen and/or 
develop new policies and ordinances.  


2. Assist the Stoughton Police Department with annual processes related to training, 
issuing and renewal of liquor and operator licenses and conducting Alcohol Age 
Compliance Checks. 


3. Research effective strategies related to alcohol implemented in Dane County and across 
Wisconsin.  


4. Advise the Stoughton Police Department, City Clerk, and Public Safety Committee 
through proposed changes to existing or new ordinances, policies, and practices to 
ensure Stoughton is a healthy, safe community.  


 


Members and Roles: 


The Alcohol Policy Committee will consist of no less than five, but no more than 10 members.  
Membership of the Committee will include one representative appointed from the City Council 
and one representative appointed from the Stoughton Wellness Coalition.  The remaining spots 
will be recruited from the community at large.  


Chair – Calls the meetings and keeps the group on task. 


Secretary – Keeps meeting notes and correspondence. 


Implementers – Those who gather information, conduct research and/or draft policies and 
ordinances. 


Meeting Schedule: 


The committee will meet monthly or as needed during the first 12 months, in correlation to 
scheduled Public Safety Committee meetings.  Thereafter, the schedule will be determined by 
members on at least a quarterly basis. 








Topic: 
Community 
Well-being 


Ordinance(s) 
Citation 


Policy Summary Is it enforced and how? Links 


Chapter 125 
Adopted 


Sec. 14-33 “The provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes set 
forth in this section are adopted and made a part 
of this section by reference, exclusive of any 
provisions thereof relating to the penalty to be 
imposed or the punishment for violation of such 
statutes. A violation of any such provision shall 
constitute a violation of this section. This 
adoption by reference shall include all 
amendments of and to the listed provisions. Any 
act required to be performed or prohibited by any 
statute incorporated in this section by reference 
is required or prohibited by this section.” 
 
 


 https://library.m
unicode.com/wi/
stoughton/code
s/code_of_ordin
ances?nodeId=
MUCO_CH14B
U_ARTIIALBE_
S14-33STSTAD 
 
 


Click & 
Collect 
Regulations 


None    


Open 
Intoxicants, 
ban or limits  


Sec. 50-6(a) "No person shall carry or expose to view any 
open can, bottle or any other container of malt 
beverages, intoxicating liquor or other alcohol 
beverages or drink the same on any sidewalk, 
street, alley, parking lot, or other public place, 
except as provided in subsection (b)." 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH50OFMIP
R_S50-
6ALBEPUPL 
 
 


Alcohol-free 
venues & 
parks 


Sec.50-6(b) “Fermented malt beverages and wine coolers 
may be possessed and consumed in Mandt 
Park, Virgin Lake Park, East Park, Bjoin Park, 
Norse Park, Rotary Park, Racetrack Park, and 
Nordic Ridge Park only with the prior written 
authorization of the parks and recreation 
department and city clerk.” 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH50OFMIP
R_S50-
6ALBEPUPL 
 
 


Limitations 
on Single 
serving sizes 
& kegs 


None    


Signage 
Limitations 


Sec.78-812 No sign accessory to any parking area shall be 
permitted except in compliance with the following 
regulations: 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n







(1) 
One sign may be erected to designate each 
entrance to or exit from a parking area; each 
such sign shall be no more than five square feet 
in area; such signs are exempt from minimum 
setback requirements but shall be located at 
least one foot behind the lot line. Such signs 
shall not contain non-directory content. 


(2) 
One sign designating the conditions of use shall 
be permitted for each parking area; each such 
sign shall be limited to a maximum area of nine 
square feet. Such signs are exempt from 
minimum setback requirements but shall be 
screened from adjoining property 


Rules regarding advertisements over windows or 
at height of youth? 


 
 


odeId=MUCO
_CH78ZO_AR
TVIIISIRE_S7
8-
812SIACPAA
R 
 
 


Topic: 
Licensing 


    


Clear 
procedure 
for 
awarding 
licenses 


Ch. 14, Art. 
II, sec 14-
36-
application; 
sec.14-38 
issuance of 
license; 
Wisconsin 
statute 
125.04 
General 
licensing 
requirement
s 
 
 


“The application for such licenses shall be in 
writing on forms furnished by the state 
department of revenue and shall contain the 
following information verified under oath by the 
applicant.” 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH14BU_AR
TIIALBE_S14-
32ALBELI 
 


 


Public 
notice & 
involvement 
during 
application 
review 


Sec 14-31- 
Revocation, 
suspension, 
or non-
renewal of 
license 
 
 


“The following provisions shall apply to the 
revocation, suspension or nonrenewal of any 
license issued pursuant to this chapter 
notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
chapter, except those providing for revocation or 
suspension of any license by the court:” 


 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH14BU_AR
TIIALBE_S14-
32ALBELI 
 







 


Guidelines 
or criteria 
set for 
awarding 
licenses 


Ch. 14, Art. 
II, sec 14-
36-
application; 
sec.14-38 
issuance of 
license; 
Wisconsin 
statute 
125.04 
General 
licensing 
requirement
s 
 
 


“The application for such licenses shall be in 
writing on forms furnished by the state 
department of revenue and shall contain the 
following information verified under oath by the 
applicant…” 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH14BU_AR
TIIALBE_S14-
32ALBELI 
 
 


Policy or 
guidelines 
for granting 
operators’ 
licenses 


Sec 14-33 
State 
statute 
adopted 
125.17 
issuance of 
operator's 
license; 
125.04 
general 
licensing 
requirement
s 
 
 


“The provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes set 
forth in this section are adopted and made a part 
of this section by reference, exclusive of any 
provisions thereof relating to the penalty to be 
imposed or the punishment for violation of such 
statutes. A violation of any such provision shall 
constitute a violation of this section. This 
adoption by reference shall include all 
amendments of and to the listed provisions. Any 
act required to be performed or prohibited by any 
statute incorporated in this section by reference 
is required or prohibited by this section.” 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH14BU_AR
TIIALBE_S14-
33STSTAD 
 
 


Are 
licensees 
disciplined? 


Sec. 14-42(b) 
point 
schedule 


Purpose. The purposes of this section are to 
require the public safety committee to initiate 
nonrenewal, revocation or suspension 
proceedings under certain conditions, and to 
specify the minimum suspension that shall be 
imposed under certain conditions. Nothing in this 
section is intended to limit or modify the city's 
authority to refuse to renew, suspend or revoke 
any license under this chapter, or to require the 
city to apply the point schedule for any purpose 
other than those purposes expressly provided for 
in this section. 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH14BU_AR
TIIALBE_S14-
42POVAALBE
LIOUCOPECA
LIVIRESU 
 
 







 


Alcohol 
license 
conditions 
frequently 
applied 


None    


Topic: 
Underage 
Drinking 


    


Ongoing 
regular 
alcohol age 
compliance 
checks 


None  Done twice per year by the Stoughton Police 
Department  


  


Citations 
issued to 
ages 18+ for 
providing 
locations for 
drinking 


Ch 50 Sec. 
50-14 


“The common council of the City of Stoughton 
intends to discourage underage possession and 
consumption of alcohol, even if done within the 
confines of a private residence, and intends to 
hold persons civilly responsible who host events 
or gatherings where persons under 21 years of 
age possess or consume alcohol regardless of 
whether the person hosting the event or 
gathering supplied the alcohol” 
 
 


 https://library.
municode.com
/wi/stoughton/
codes/code_of
_ordinances?n
odeId=MUCO
_CH50OFMIP
R_S50-
6ALBEPUPL 
 
 


Small Talks 
campaign 
conducted 
locally 


 -SWC website 
-yard signs 
-billboards? 


  


Efforts to 
secure 
alcohol on 
private 
property 


 -Fridge locks   








Stoughton Alcohol Retailer’s Informational Meeting 


Hybrid and recorded on Zoom 


 


 
1. Tim Swadley, Stoughton Mayor 


 
• Welcome and introductions, purpose of the meeting 


 
2. Dan Jenks, Chief of Police 


 
• Introduction and philosophy on law enforcement practices 
• New processes for Operator Licensing 


 
3. Candee Christen, City Clerk  


 
• Over view of Stoughton Ordinances  
• Special Event Licenses 
• NEW Online Application Process 


 
4. Jason Lee, WI Dept. of Revenue – Alcohol & Tobacco Enforcement Unit (???) 


 
• Overview of Alcohol & Tobacco Unit 
• Overview of WI Alcohol related laws 


 
5. Teressa Pellett, Project Coordinator, Stoughton Wellness Coalition 


 
• Overview of SWC 
• Community Health and Safety, and Underage Drinking Prevention 
• Retailer supports available: 


 Portable ID Scanners for parties and events 
 Support Alcohol Age Compliance and community recognition 
 Education/training for retailers  


 
6. Questions/Answer 


 
 


 








Combination “Class A”  Liquor & Class “A”  Fermented  Malt Beverage:  


Bottled Pleasure, Inc., Robert D Savaske Jr, Agent, dba Stoughton Spirits, 965 N. Page Street.  


Becco, Inc, Sukhraj Bharya, Agent, dba Best Plaza Liquor, 1056 W. Main Street.  


Ultra Mart Foods LLC, Tamera Braxton, Agent, dba Pick 'N Save #6390, 1750 Hwy 51/138  


Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, Terra Hanson, Agent, dba Wal-Mart Store #1176, 2600 Hwy 138  


Aldi, Inc., Shari Schloemer, Agent, dba Aldi #05, 1399 US HWY 51  


KPW Hospitality, LLC, Jacqueline Larson, Agent, Tru by Hilton, 2500 Jackson St.  


Class “A” Liquor  


Ashlies L LC, Ashley Kirch, Agent, dba Ashlie’s, 217 S. Fourth St.  


Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage:  


Jagat Petroleum, LLC, Gurinderdeep Dhillon, dba Stoughton BP, 1009 W. Main Street  


Neighborhood Liquor, Inc. Kuldeep Kaur,Agent, dba Page St. Mart,  981 N. Page Street  


Walgreen Corporation, Jaqueline Shaffer, Agent, dba Walgreen’s #07519, 1705 US Hwy 51 


Kwik Trip, Inc., Jennifer Wentela, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #738, 1231 E. Main Street  


Kwik Trip, Inc., Brett Decker, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #739, 517 W. Main Street   


Kwik Trip, Inc., Breonna Pitera, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #893, 1359 US HWY 51  


Kwik Trip, Inc., Michael Laures, Agent, dba Kwik Trip Store #967, 2400 Roby Road   


Combination “Class B” Liquor & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage:  


Amovi Ventu res, LLC,  Wendy Brigham, Agent, dba Banushi’s Bar & Grill, 800 Nygaard St  


Four Children, Ryan Milton, Agent, dba The Feiring, 419 E. Main Street  


The Koffee Kup Restaurant LLC, Patricia Gulseth, Agent, dba The Koffee Kup Restaurant, 355 
E. Main Street  


Mandt Community Center, Inc, Bart Quale, Agent, dba Mandt Community Center, 400 Mandt 
Parkway 


201 S Sixth St. LLC, Malory Wagner, Agent, dba The Revival, 201 S Sixth Street  


Nel-Car Corporation, Robert Bloxham, Agent, dba Viking Lanes, 1410 Hwy 51/138  


Danny K. Aaberg, Agent, dba Whatever, 508 E. Main Street  


Fire & Eis, LLC, Scott Sowlles, Agent, dba Fahrenheit 364, 364 E. Main St  


Deak’s Pub & Grill, LLC, Jamie D. Bush, Agent, dba Deak’s Pub & Grill, 1017 Nygaard Street  







Famous Yeti’s LLC, Cale J. Ryan, Agent, dba Wendigo Tavern, 121 E. Main Street  


Viking Brew Pub LLC, Vik Malling, Agent, dba Viking Brew Pub, 211 E. Main Street  


Working Title, LLC, Patti Cross, Agent, dba Water Street Tavern 324 S Water Street  


Tailgaters of Stoughton, LLC, Chad Strutzel, Agent, dba Tailgaters, 151 E. Main Street  


Brown Wood, LLC., Trisha Brown, Agent, dba Roxy’s Restobar, 208 W Main Street  


Pamela Kosanovich, Agent, dba Argot Craft Tavern 317 S. Division St.  


Stoughton VFW Post 328, Jean Torgeson, Agent, dba VFW Mother Post 328 200 Veterans Rd  


Combination Reserve “Class B” Liquor & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage:  


El Rio Grande Restaurant LLC, Erika Cervantes, Agent, dba El Rio Grande Restaurant, 524 W. 
Main Street  


American Legion Post 59, Michael Currie, Agent, dba American Legion Post 59, 803 N Page St.  


J&S Nordic Enterprises, LLC, Brian Johnson, Agent, dba Cheesers, 183 E Main St.  


Drikke LLC, Jamae Ramsden, Agent, dba The Lageret, 515 East Main St.  


La Cantina, LLC, Lourdes Aranda, Agent, dba La Cantina, 620 Nygaard St. 


Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage:  


Famous Yeti’s LLC, Cale Ryan, Agent, dba Famous Yeti’s Pizza, 971 N. Page Street.  


Dairyland Desserts LLC, Lara Romine, Agent, dba Dairyland Desserts Café, 176 E. Main Street  


Gemini Games, LLC, Brianna Fero, Agent, dba, Gemini Games, 193 W Main St.  


Stoughton Opera House Friends Association, Eric Francksen, Agent, dba Stoughton  


Opera House, 381 E. Main St.  


Bear Arms Performing Arts Center LLC, Jordan Tilleson, Agent, dba Bear Arms  


Performing Arts Center, 384 E. Main St.  


Pancake Cafe Stoughton 2 LLC, Andrew Ghelfi, Agent, dba Pancake Cafe, 2420 WI Hwy 138   


Class “C” Wine: 


Dairyland Desserts, LLC, Lara Romine, Agent, dba Dairyland Desserts Cafe, 176 E Main St. 


Pancake Cafe Stoughton 2 LLC, Andrew Ghelfi, Agent, dba Pancake Cafe, 2420 WI Hwy 138   


“Class B” Winery License:  


Mershonian Cidery, LLC, Joseph Baird, Agent, dba Mershon’s Cidery, 124 W. Main St. 





